



An agency of the Government of Ontario

Un organisme du gouvernement de l'Ontario

This document was retrieved from the Ontario Heritage Act Register, which is accessible through the website of the Ontario Heritage Trust at **www.heritagetrust.on.ca.** 

Ce document est tiré du registre aux fins de la *Loi sur le patrimoine de l'Ontario*, accessible à partir du site Web de la Fiducie du patrimoine ontarien sur **www.heritagetrust.on.ca**.



February 24, 2003

Catholic Cemeteries - Archdiocese of Toronto 4950 Yonge Street, Suite 206 Toronto, Ontario, M2N 6K1

Attention: Executive Director

Dear Sir:

Re: By-law 2003-32 - To designate a certain property as being of

historic and/or architectural value or interest - "The Robert

Milroy Jr. House" - 7960 Steeles Avenue

This will advise that Council at its meeting held on January 28th, 2003, passed By-law 2003-32, which designated the "Robert Milroy Jr. House", 7960 Steeles Avenue, as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest.

A copy of the by-law, with the pertinent registration data, is attached for your information.

Sincerely,

Sheila Birrell Town Clerk

Encl.

SB/jik

c:

The Ontario Heritage Foundation

Mr. R. Hutcheson, Manager, Heritage Planning

Mr. Michael Wren, Miller Thompson, 2500, 20 Queen Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5H 3S1

1/pr



# CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY "Sheila Birrell" c/s SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM



### BY-LAW 2003-32

A by-law to designate a certain property as being of Historic and/or Architectural Value or Interest Robert Milroy Jr. House

WHEREAS Pursuant to Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, the council of a municipality is authorized to enact by-laws to designate a real property, including all the buildings and structures thereon, to be of historic and/or architectural value or interest;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Markham has caused to be served on the owners of the lands and premises at:

Catholic Cemeteries - Archdiocese of Toronto 4950 Yonge Street, Suite 206 Toronto, Ontario M2N 6K1 Attention: Executive Director

and upon the Ontario Heritage Foundation, notice of intention to designate The Robert Milroy Jr. House, located at 7960 Steeles Avenue, Markham, and has caused such notice of intention to be published once in a newspaper having a general circulation in the municipality;

AND WHEREAS the reasons for designation are set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto and forming part of this by-law;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. THAT the following real property, more particularly described in Schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this by-law is hereby designated as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest:

The Robert Milroy Jr. House 7960 Steeles Avenue Town of Markham The Regional Municipality of York

2. THAT the Town Solicitor is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the property described in Schedule "A" attached hereto in the property Land Registry Office.

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS  $28^{TH}$  DAY OF JANUARY, 2003.

"Sheila Birrell"	"Don Cousens"	
SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK	DON COUSENS, MAYOR	

## SCHEDULE 'A' TO BY-LAW 2003-32

In the Town of Markham in the Regional Municipality of York, property description as follows:

PART OF LOT 1, CONCESSION 10, BEING PART 13, PLAN 65R-24320 TOWN OF MARKHAM REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK

## SCHEDULE 'B' TO BY-LAW 2003-32

#### STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR DESIGNATION

The Robert Milroy Jr. House is recommended for designation under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act because of its historical, architectural and contextual significance.

#### Historical Reasons

The house at 7960 Steeles Avenue was built c.1859 on land that had originally been granted to Lt. Col. William Jervois on Oct. 12, 1816. Jervois's patent was rescinded Sept. 25, 1817. Richard Strange acquired a patent for the full 200 acres on Jan. 12, 1833. On Jan. 24, 1834, one year later, the property was sold to Robert Milroy Sr. for 344 pounds.

Robert Milroy Sr., b.1791 d. Nov. 18, 1854, came to Canada with his wife Anne, from Kirkcowan in Wigtown, Scotland in 1827, where they had operated a wollen mill. Their three children, a son James, b.1823 and two daughters Agnes and Celia accompanied them. Research indicates that the Milroy family was most likely living on this property prior to them purchasing it in 1834. They may have leased it from the owner Richard Strange. Robert Jr. was born in 1834, the year his father purchased the property, and died Sept. 17, 1862 in Cedar Grove at the age of 28.

Robert Milroy Sr. built a sawmill in the late 1830's, which survived until 1924 when it was destroyed by fire. It appears that the Milroy family resided in a 1½ storey log building c.1833. The mill was constructed where the river crosses the townline on the banks of the Little Rouge at Concession 10, opposite the present site of the Cedar Grove Park.

The 1851 Census lists Robert Milroy Sr., his wife Ann and children James, Celia, Agnes, John and Robert Jr. (17 years old) living in a 1½ storey log building on the west part of this property. In 1853 Robert's eldest son, James, has title to the East part of 50 acres. James continues to reside at the family home until 1859 when it appears he builds his own 1½ storey frame structure. In 1854, Robert Sr. died and was buried at the Cedar Grove Mennonite Cemetery.

The 1857 and 1858 Assessment Rolls lists Robert Milroy Jr. as farming the 138 acres then owned by his widowed mother Ann. In 1859, the 137-acre parcel was divided into the west part 68-½ acres, which goes to John, the youngest son, who also inherits the family home. The middle part, 68½ acres, went to Robert the middle son who was married to Elizabeth Reesor. It is about this time that the house at 7960 Steeles Ave. was constructed. George Tremaine's Map of 1860 shows the Robert Milroy Jr. house on its present day site. The Census of 1861 lists Robert Jr. with his wife, Elizabeth (nee Reesor), and their one-year-old son, Robert, residing in a 1-½ storey frame house at his location.

Robert Milroy Jr. died on Sept. 17, 1862, in his 28th year leaving his 23 year old wife, Elizabeth and year old son, Robert. Robert was buried at the Zion Cemetery, beside the Zion Presbyterian Church, which is located at the rear of Lot 1, Concession 10 on land donated by James Milroy. The Milroy family were Scottish Presbyterians and made up much of the early congregation of the church. Elizabeth remained a widow for the remainder of her life, but after her husband's death left the farm to reside with her brothers Robert and David Reesor at Silver Spring Farms (Lot 9 east, Concession 7) with son Robert for a number of years. The Census of 1871 lists James Craigie with his wife and four children farming the property as tenants.

In 1881, the Census lists Elizabeth and son Robert, who is 20 years old, back on the property farming. A few years later they were again residing with David Reesor until the time of her death in 1906. Robert who never married died in Cedar Grove on Mar. 25, 1895. He and his mother, Elizabeth, are buried at Grace Anglican Church Cemetery.

By 1885, John Milroy controlled the original 180 acres, which he divided again in order to set up his three sons Alexander, Robert A. and Arthur. It is Robert A. who inherits the middle part of 68 ½ acres. Descendants of this early Milroy family continued to farm this tract of land for over 150 years.

#### Architectural Reasons

The building located at 7960 Steeles Avenue, although somewhat altered, is an example of the simple architectural tastes of some of Markham's early rural families. The 1½ storey Georgian Style cottage is presently 2 bays across by 1 bay deep. The original openings have been covered over, but the form suggests that the house was, when constructed, 3 bays across by 2 bays deep. There is a centrally located addition at the rear of the main house. The gable roof is of a low pitch with plain projecting eaves and verges. The 2/2 rectangular windows are newer and have plain wood trim. The house sits on a fieldstone foundation and has a single mid side right chimney. The dwelling is clad in a horizontal siding of modern material over the original wood clapboard.

#### Contextual Reasons

The Robert Milroy Junior House is of contextual significance as one of a number of early farmhouses in the southern part of the township. Together with other houses in the vicinity, the house provides a sense of the historic agricultural tradition in the area. The house forms part of the greater community of Cedar Grove and is part of the remaining remnants of rural farmhouses that were prevalent in this area. It is a reminder of the community surrounding the Zion United Church and cemetery, located on land, which was donated by the Milroy family, Scottish Presbyterians who settled on this property.